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          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Good morning.

          3  I'm Council Member Hiram Monserrate, Chair of the

          4  Committee on Veterans, and today's oversight hearing

          5  has been convened to review government benefits for

          6  veterans particularly at the State and Federal

          7  levels and to discuss how these are accessed.

          8                 Many veterans maintain that they are

          9  unable to access benefits available at the State and

         10  federal level.

         11                 The VA's own annual budget report for

         12  2005 indicates that on average it takes

         13  approximately 167 days for the VA to process

         14  compensation and pension applications.

         15                 In addition, although there are more

         16  than 300 military veterans residing in New York

         17  City, there are currently only two field offices and

         18  one central office of the Division of Veterans

         19  Affairs for the entire State of New York.

         20                 As service men and women return to

         21  New York, after faithfully serving their country in

         22  Iraq, Afghanistan and other overseas assignments,

         23  they need assistance with services, such as housing,

         24  health and employment placement.

         25                 We must ensure that our State and
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          2  federal agencies are helping returning soldiers,

          3  service members in general, in their effort to

          4  readjust to civilian life, and older veterans who

          5  often still need assistance in their struggle to

          6  obtain benefits which they are entitled to.

          7                 Today we will be hearing from the

          8  Mayor's Office of Veterans Affairs, Clarice Joynes,

          9  Executive Director of MOVA and other military

         10  veterans and support groups.

         11                 And with that we will begin. I want

         12  to acknowledge the presence of Council Members

         13  Nelson from Brooklyn and Avella from Queens.

         14                 Please begin.

         15                 MR. WEISBROTH: Good afternoon, and

         16  thank you for the opportunity to address the

         17  Committee on Veterans. On behalf of George P.

         18  Basher, Director of the New York State Division of

         19  Veterans Affairs, I present the following

         20  information and comments regarding the New York

         21  State Division of Veterans' Affairs and benefits

         22  available in New York to those state citizens who

         23  served in the armed forces of the United States.

         24                 The New York State Division of

         25  Veterans' Affairs was created by the New York State
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          2  Legislature in 1945 to assist returning World War II

          3  servicemen and women in readjustment from military

          4  to civilian life. Legislation establishing the

          5  division provided for a separate agency to oversee

          6  all matters concerning veterans, who in the past had

          7  found themselves shunted from department to

          8  department.

          9                 The role of the Division of Veterans'

         10  Affairs, simply put, is to provide for the

         11  well-being of the State's veterans' community.

         12                 The Division offers benefits

         13  counseling and advocacy to some 1.1 million state

         14  veterans, and their families and survivors, as well

         15  as active duty military personnel and their

         16  families. The heart of the state's veterans programs

         17  is the division's free counseling service. A network

         18  of experienced and dedicated counselors, each a

         19  veteran, provide the veterans community professional

         20  help to resolve social, medical and economic

         21  problems.

         22                 Twenty-five percent, nearly 300,000

         23  veterans, live within the five boroughs of New York

         24  City.

         25                 State veterans counselors assist the
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          2  claimant, whether a veteran or his or her spouse,

          3  child or parent, in completing applications,

          4  obtaining necessary documentation and filing for a

          5  broad spectrum of federal benefits, state, local and

          6  private veterans' benefits. Counselors also assist

          7  claimants in responding to follow-up correspondence,

          8  and when necessary, appealing an unfavorable ruling.

          9                 The Division of Veterans' Affairs

         10  would assist veterans and their families in

         11  navigating the complex benefits system, with

         12  professional state veterans counselors serving as

         13  intermediaries between veterans and the

         14  bureaucracies that administer the myriad of benefits

         15  and services available, but accessible only upon

         16  application. Veterans benefits are not automatic,

         17  they must be applied for, which can be a complicated

         18  and confusing process.

         19                 Since its statutory beginning on

         20  April 11, 1945, the Division of Veterans' Affairs

         21  has forged a stellar record of service and

         22  commitment, providing professional guidance and help

         23  to millions of New Yorkers, from patriots who served

         24  in the wars at the beginning of the twentieth

         25  century, to those who today have answered the call
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          2  to duty in battling terrorism.

          3                 The Division of Veterans' Affairs

          4  remains as relevant today as it did 61 years ago. In

          5  its infancy, the Division was there to serve a large

          6  group of veterans with similar experiences and

          7  needs, men and women only months away from war,

          8  returning home with a few specific needs,

          9  employment, education, a home and health care,

         10  benefits clearly spelled out in the historic GI

         11  Bill, which recently had been enacted by the federal

         12  government and administered by the US Department of

         13  Veterans Affairs.

         14                 Today, the veterans' community is

         15  much more diverse, and the benefits are less defined

         16  and more difficult to access, with rules for

         17  eligibility frequently changing. The veterans of

         18  World War II, who were rewarded with the GI Bill,

         19  are now well into their eighties and their needs are

         20  different. They are concerned with affordable and

         21  accessible health care, nursing homes and for many,

         22  help that will allow them to continue living in

         23  their homes.

         24                 New York has a large population of

         25  veterans who served in Korea, Vietnam and the
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          2  Persian Gulf, veterans whose needs run the entire

          3  gamut of benefits, from employment and job training,

          4  health and mental health needs, homeless assistance

          5  and social and economic assistance.

          6                 Many younger veterans, those from the

          7  Persian Gulf, Afghanistan, the War on Terrorism, and

          8  peacekeeping missions around the world, are just

          9  beginning their careers and lives within the state,

         10  and need professional help with the complicated and

         11  often-changing program of veterans benefits and

         12  services.

         13                 The primary provider of benefits for

         14  veterans and their families is the federal

         15  government, which through the VA offers financial

         16  benefits for the disabled, health care, education,

         17  burial, home loan guarantees, programs and services

         18  for the homeless, and an assortment of other

         19  benefits available to veterans throughout the United

         20  States.

         21                 New York State has also enacted over

         22  the years, and continues to enact legislation, a

         23  variety of benefits and services to assist those

         24  veterans and their families living in the Empire

         25  State. These benefits are available to those who
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          2  served honorably in the armed forces on active duty

          3  and other training purposes and reside in New York.

          4  Certain benefits, both state and federal, require

          5  military duty during periods of war or conflict.

          6                 The following is a summary of

          7  benefits and services available to veterans and

          8  qualified dependents and survivors living in New

          9  York State.

         10                 Now, rather than go into each

         11  benefit, I've made a list there for you.

         12                 What I would like to point out,

         13  though, in that attachment that I gave you, is the

         14  -- first of all, the populations of the veterans in

         15  the five boroughs, but the total expenditures, this

         16  is actually money that comes into veterans who are

         17  living in our City in all five boroughs, and to the

         18  efforts of the Mayor's Office, New York State and

         19  the VA, this is money that gets into people's

         20  pockets and bank accounts and spent in the

         21  community.

         22                 This is the proof of the pudding of

         23  the benefits that veterans are accessing and the

         24  help that they're getting to access it.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 I know that we have Director of MOVA

          5  here and I'm going to ask you to indulge us because

          6  I'm going to go right into some questions. We've had

          7  the privilege of having you here several times, and

          8  I want to really concentrate on Mr. Weisbroth's

          9  testimony.

         10                 I also want to acknowledge Council

         11  Member James is here.

         12                 A few of the questions that I have,

         13  this is an ongoing theme of several of the hearings

         14  that we've held here in the City Council trying to

         15  get a little bit more clarity.

         16                 I want to go right to this

         17  attachment. This is the attachment that you prepared

         18  for today.

         19                 MR. WEISBROTH: The VA's geographical

         20  expenditure of funds comes out for each of the

         21  counties, just extracted out.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And these

         23  figures are produced by whom?

         24                 MR. WEISBROTH: By the Veterans'

         25  Administration. And it's based on payments that go
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          2  out by zip code.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. So,

          4  this is the feds, right?

          5                 MR. WEISBROTH: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: So, you're

          7  testifying, correct me if I'm wrong, that what's in

          8  here is the expenditures made by the federal

          9  government and the State government?

         10                 MR. WEISBROTH: No. This is solely

         11  federal money paid out to veterans, dependents, and

         12  their inheritors.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. So, it

         14  has here compensation in pension, 78,000 for Queens.

         15                 MR. WEISBROTH: It's 78 million.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Seventy-eight

         17  million.

         18                 MR. WEISBROTH: I didn't bother

         19  tacking on the three zeroes. We have them up on top.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right. Well,

         21  the veterans population is 83,000 --

         22                 MR. WEISBROTH: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: So, the total

         24  expenditures, compensation, education and vocational

         25  rehab, insurance and indemnities. Are there any
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          2  benefits that the State provides?

          3                 MR. WEISBROTH: Direct benefits --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Direct

          5  benefits.

          6                 MR. WEISBROTH: Would be the blind

          7  annuity, and that's $1,000 a year. Paid out in

          8  12-month installments of about $91 a month.

          9                 There is also a tax exemption that

         10  comes in on the real estate taxes, and that depends

         11  on when you serve, if you are injured.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Now, explain

         13  that to me. Because I know that the City obviously

         14  had something to do with it. What's the relation

         15  between the tax, the State and the City's tax,

         16  Department of Tax?

         17                 MR. WEISBROTH: Well, again, it's only

         18  on real estate. It's not school tax. It would depend

         19  on -- there's a whole pamphlet on it, it's a little

         20  bit difficult to explain, it's based on when you

         21  served, where you served, if you were injured, you

         22  can then apply for one of three different tax

         23  exemptions and you get --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Do you know

         25  how much that cost the state?
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          2                 MR. WEISBROTH: No, but I can find out

          3  for you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: We need the

          5  hard figure on what the reduction means.

          6                 MR. WEISBROTH: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And actual

          8  dollar benefits to the veterans would be good.

          9                 MR. WEISBROTH: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay, so,

         11  some of the questions I have are similar to the ones

         12  I've asked of our City agency.

         13                 Does the Division of Veterans

         14  Affairs, the State Division, keep track of the

         15  complaints you receive from veterans?

         16                 MR. WEISBROTH: We would need a

         17  telephone book to do that.

         18                 I have counselors working in -- I

         19  have got 45 counselors and support staff throughout

         20  the State, and while we do get thank you phone

         21  calls, the majority of phone calls we get is the VA

         22  hasn't done this, or why is it taking so long, and

         23  we don't keep an actual numerical count.

         24                 But that's what keeps us in business.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.
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          2                 Okay, so, I'm going to ask you to

          3  walk me through. First of all, where are your

          4  offices?

          5                 MR. WEISBROTH: Well, we have offices

          6  in the City. I guess that's what you're concerned

          7  about.

          8                 We have counselors at all the VA

          9  medical centers.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Tell me where

         11  your office, your physical office is in the City.

         12                 MR. WEISBROTH: My physical office is

         13  located with the Veterans Administration in the 245

         14  West Houston. It's an office where we handle

         15  appellate work, I coordinate for the 31 eastern

         16  counties of New York State.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: So you share

         18  space with the VA, the federal --

         19                 MR. WEISBROTH: They're our landlord.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.

         21                 MR. WEISBROTH: I might also add, I

         22  worked for the VA for 32 years and retired as the

         23  service and the manager of the New York Office,

         24  spent the bulk of my time in New York State at 245

         25  West Houston and prior to that at 252 Seventh.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.

          3                 So, is that the only office the State

          4  has and the City?

          5                 MR. WEISBROTH: No. I have an office

          6  at the Brooklyn Medical Center, the Manhattan

          7  Medical Center, the St. Albans Extended Care Center,

          8  a small subsidiary office at Los Battalion Hall in

          9  Queens, I have an office at the Bronx VA Medical

         10  Center. We have an office at the County Building in

         11  Staten Island. Did I cover all the boroughs,

         12  Clarice?

         13                 MS. JOYNES: I would say so, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Staten

         15  Island, Brooklyn, Queens.

         16                 MR. WEISBROTH: Queens, Bronx.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Where is the

         18  one in the Bronx?

         19                 MR. WEISBROTH: At the VA Medical

         20  Center.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. So, the

         22  Bronx VA Medical Center, the Brooklyn VA Medical

         23  Center, the one in Queens is at St. Albans Extended

         24  Care? What is that?

         25                 MR. WEISBROTH: It's a long-term care
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          2  facility for chronic --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And the

          4  Staten Island one is where now?

          5                 MR. WEISBROTH: At the county office

          6  right at the foot of the ferry.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. So, the

          8  other three are basically at the health facility.

          9                 MR. WEISBROTH: Actually, I have a

         10  small office at the Chapel Street VA Facility also,

         11  at the foot of the Manhattan Bridge.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.

         13                 And how many people are employed? You

         14  said you have 45 counselors throughout the State,

         15  right?

         16                 And how many of them are in the City?

         17                 MR. WEISBROTH: Let's see, in the City

         18  I have eight counselors out in the field, and I have

         19  three senior counselors and support staff at the

         20  regional office.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Eight and

         22  three?

         23                 MR. WEISBROTH: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And it's in

         25  the City --
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          2                 MR. WEISBROTH: Actually, excuse me,

          3  nine. Just added one last month.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. You

          5  have nine counselors, three staffers.

          6                 MR. WEISBROTH: Three senior

          7  counselors. I have support, clerical support staff

          8  located at all the hospitals and at the regional

          9  office.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Are all these

         11  nine and three, are they all full-time employees?

         12                 MR. WEISBROTH: Full-time employees,

         13  all veterans.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: All veterans.

         15                 And do you have any idea how many

         16  cases they handle a year? Do you have any idea how

         17  many cases?

         18                 MR. WEISBROTH: It depends on the

         19  location.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: With the

         21  City.

         22                 MR. WEISBROTH: Well, let's go to the

         23  Bronx. On the Bronx we average about 50 claims

         24  submitted to the Veterans' Administration that are

         25  new or reopened each month. Brooklyn about 45. St.
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          2  Albans about 35 to 40. Manhattan 35 to 40. Staten

          3  Island a little bit less. About 15.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Cases?

          5                 MR. WEISBROTH: No, claims submitted.

          6  Many more people call or come in, and sometimes they

          7  just have us submit a birth certificate or a

          8  marriage license that increase benefits.

          9                 I'm talking about new and reopened

         10  claims for benefits, where someone is going to be

         11  getting on the rolls, adding to that dollar count.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I don't want

         13  to assume. You've testified that you don't believe

         14  there's a database or a tracking system?

         15                 MR. WEISBROTH: No. I can actually

         16  provide to you the casework by office for my folks,

         17  but it would only be new reopened or original

         18  claims. The other things, the complaints I can't

         19  give you. But I can give you how much work each one

         20  of my offices has been submitting?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Yes, that

         22  would be good.

         23                 MR. WEISBROTH: Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: That would be

         25  good.
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          2                 Do you believe that your office

          3  currently has the resources necessary to meet the

          4  needs of New York City veterans?

          5                 MR. WEISBROTH: Could I do more if I

          6  had more people? I could do more outreach and things

          7  like that. However, we are pretty well maxed out

          8  space-wise, where we're located right now. I

          9  couldn't add more counselors to the VA facilities,

         10  I'd have to go into a storefront-type of an

         11  operation, and to be quite frank with you, that

         12  doesn't work very well.

         13                 To use the Bronx for an example, we

         14  had a storefront office on Fordham Road and we

         15  averaged eight to ten claims a month. I moved into

         16  the hospital, 40 to 50 claims per month. We're

         17  somewhat limited by how much space the VA will give

         18  us.

         19                 Over the last three years our budget

         20  has not gone down, because we're actually able to

         21  track how many claims we've been successful with and

         22  the money we've brought into New York State, and

         23  it's helped our budget people realize the job that

         24  we do. We're able to keep our staffing up.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: What is the
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          2  budget for your office, the New York State Division

          3  of Veterans?

          4                 MR. WEISBROTH: I don't have an exact

          5  dollar amount for you right now. I didn't realize

          6  we'd be getting into that. I'll get it for you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: That would be

          8  good.

          9                 Do you have any idea what it might

         10  be?

         11                 MR. WEISBROTH: I don't want to guess.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: We take

         13  guesstimates. I'm just trying to get a feel for it.

         14                 It's not a major agency as far as the

         15  budget.

         16                 MR. WEISBROTH: Only about 101

         17  employees right now throughout the State. So, no,

         18  it's certainly not a major agency.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right.

         20                 So you don't even want to give me a

         21  ballpark?

         22                 MR. WEISBROTH: No. But you can have

         23  it tomorrow.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. That's

         25  good.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I just have

          3  one thing to add to that because most of the

          4  questions have been asked.

          5                 Do you have an idea based upon a

          6  trend, something that many veterans would like to

          7  see but your office is not able to help them with,

          8  due to budgetary or law type of constraints. It is

          9  not a law yet, something not available to the

         10  veterans?

         11                 MR. WEISBROTH: Well, I think what

         12  most veterans would like is to be able to go back

         13  and apply for something that first happened to them

         14  that they didn't apply to.

         15                 The VA pays benefits from the first

         16  of the month, following which you filed your claim,

         17  and a lot of veterans have put things off and maybe

         18  four or five years down the road they now come back

         19  and say, you know, I hurt my knee in the service in,

         20  I'll use 1967, the year I got out, and you're only

         21  going to pay me from today, but it's in my service

         22  medical records that it happened back in 1967. The

         23  way the law reads, it can only be paid from the

         24  first of the month on which you filed the claim.

         25                 A lot of veterans would also like,
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          2  the Vietnam era veterans, now that the kids are out

          3  of the house, would like to go back and maybe try

          4  and finish off that second degree or even their

          5  first degree that they had to put aside but there's

          6  a ten-year limiting date on your education benefits.

          7                 Those are some of the things. And the

          8  other thing, quite frankly, is until someone is at

          9  100 percent service connected disabled, there is

         10  always hope that they somehow can get that

         11  increased, without, I'm going to say, suffering too

         12  much of the pain that goes along with being 100

         13  percent disabled.

         14                 Most veterans, as they get ready to

         15  retire, are kind of looking to bridge the gap

         16  between how much money they were earning.

         17                 We saw this when the World War II

         18  veterans retired and the Korean vets retired. I'm an

         19  early Vietnam era veteran and will be retiring

         20  shortly, and there is a gap usually between what the

         21  pension and the Social Security pay and what you are

         22  earning. A lot of veterans, especially World War II

         23  vets came in after, they got ready to retire after

         24  they hit 65, and they were looking for ways to

         25  bridge the gap, and I respect that happen as my
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          2  generation gets a little bit older and they start

          3  looking for things also.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So this would

          5  be State law in a lot of cases.

          6                 MR. WEISBROTH: No, it's federal law.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It would be

          8  federal. What the State could do, because anything

          9  we could offer in the form of a resolution to the

         10  federal brothers and sisters?

         11                 MR. WEISBROTH: Well, I guess the

         12  resolution would be, number one, to provide more

         13  bodies at the regional office to process the claims.

         14  About 167 days is an average, by the way, you read

         15  that earlier. Some claims get processed a lot

         16  quicker. If there are more needier cases, they get

         17  processed very quickly. For those of you that might

         18  not be aware of it, someone that is over the age of

         19  65 and eligible for non-service connected pension,

         20  those cases do not require any medical evidence and

         21  can be processed in a week to ten days. And those

         22  are the most seriously needy veterans because it's

         23  an income-based program, you have to serve during a

         24  war-time period.

         25                 On the other hand, folks going back
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          2  to World War II, or something that happened in the

          3  forties, takes a long time to find that evidence and

          4  often their intervening factors delay it even

          5  longer.

          6                 But most veterans would like their

          7  claims filed quicker.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Do any

          9  veterans ever complain about if they were called

         10  into military, or they were involved in military,

         11  that they couldn't get into a certain tier, the City

         12  system?

         13                 MR. WEISBROTH: Never been involved

         14  with that part of it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I'll check

         16  with Clarice with that one, too. Sure. Ms. Joynes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I have a

         18  follow-up question with respect to the claims.

         19                 Are these claims that went directly

         20  to you or they went to the VA first and came to your

         21  office for troubleshooting or?

         22                 MR. WEISBROTH: It could be a

         23  combination of both.

         24                 There are some veterans that will

         25  file claims by themselves. And then they'll be
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          2  dissatisfied with what they got and someone will

          3  recommend that they go to a service organization.

          4                 We don't charge anything.  The AV,

          5  American Legion, VFW normally require you to be a

          6  member, New York State, we even have people from New

          7  Jersey.

          8                 Claims that we file initially, we

          9  follow through, all the way through the VA appeal

         10  system. I have three senior counselors who represent

         11  clients before the Board of Veterans Appeals,

         12  whether in person or by a teleconference. And we do

         13  have some very successful results.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay, my

         15  final question to you is, how do you outreach?

         16  Physically there are locations where there are

         17  veterans, but what other type of outreach?

         18                 MR. WEISBROTH: I assume you've been

         19  involved maybe with some of the enduring freedom for

         20  the troops that are returning. We go out when by the

         21  Reserve and National Guard groups. The 25th of May

         22  we'll be with the Mayor's Office of Veterans Affairs

         23  down at the Emigrant Bank with a table discussing

         24  our benefits.

         25                 We go from the Canadian border down
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          2  to Eastern Long Island. Any time someone is having

          3  an event and would like a New York State Counselor,

          4  we provide a counselor.

          5                 And my folks do this at night and we

          6  do it on weekends.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

          8  very much for your testimony.

          9                 MR. WEISBROTH: You're welcome.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Please, Ms.

         11  Joynes.

         12                 MS. JOYNES: Good afternoon, Chairman

         13  Monserrate, Council Members Avella, Fidler, James

         14  and Nelson.

         15                 It is a pleasure to appear before the

         16  New York City Committee on Veterans Issues.

         17                 The Mayor's Office of Veterans'

         18  Affairs serves the veterans and service members of

         19  New York City. We deliver information on what

         20  benefits New York City agencies have to offer

         21  veterans.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I have to

         23  interrupt. For the record, you have to identify

         24  yourself.

         25                 MS. JOYNES: Oh, yes. Clarice Joynes,
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          2  Executive Director of Mayor's Office of Veterans'

          3  Affairs. Sorry.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.

          5                 MS. JOYNES: For example, Veterans'

          6  Preference Points for Civil Service Exams and the

          7  Benefits Package for City Employees Serving in OIF

          8  and OEF, given by New York City Department of

          9  Citywide Administrative Services, the Veterans'

         10  Property Tax Exemption given by the New York State

         11  -- New York City Department of Finance, the

         12  Military Buy-Back for Retirement given by the New

         13  York City Employees and Retirement System, and the

         14  Mayor's Affordable Housing Initiative through HPD.

         15                 We also give referrals to HRA for

         16  veteran and military families who may need

         17  assistance, with receiving food stamps, receiving

         18  assistance with funds for burial, and other social

         19  service programs.

         20                 We make referrals to many other City,

         21  State and federal programs that offer special

         22  benefits for veterans.

         23                 Information on the above-mentioned

         24  benefits are accessed by veterans in New York City

         25  by calling 3-1-1 or the Mayor's Office of Veterans
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          2  Affairs. And also by accessing a website,

          3  www.nyc.gov.

          4                 Thank you for giving me the

          5  opportunity to testify before you regarding

          6  government benefits for veterans and how they are

          7  accessed.

          8                 I will be happy to answer any

          9  questions you may have regarding my testimony.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 Council member.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Ms.

         14  Joynes. As a follow-up to that, I bought back three

         15  years, you know how much it cost me as a veteran to

         16  buy back three years, and out of my own piggy-bank,

         17  over $8,000. I just thought that was pretty

         18  exorbitant. I was lucky I was able to buy those

         19  three years.

         20                 MS. JOYNES: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I would dare

         22  say many veterans would have to take a loan to do

         23  that. That's just one thing. And if something could

         24  be worked on that. I wouldn't mind if it was

         25  retroactive, by the way. But at least the future
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          2  veterans, for sure.

          3                 You were going to say something about

          4  the tier business.

          5                 MS. JOYNES: You were asking about the

          6  tiers.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Right. Because

          8  many have complained that they had to be in the

          9  military and they couldn't get a City job earlier

         10  which would have gotten them into Tier 1, for

         11  instance.

         12                 MS. JOYNES: Mm-hmm.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: That type of a

         14  situation.

         15                 MS. JOYNES: Okay, that would be a

         16  question that would have to be answered by NYCERS.

         17  Legislation would have to be passed in order for

         18  that to happen. Because as we know, you don't get

         19  into the tier system until you have actually been

         20  hired by City government, whether it's by civil

         21  service examination or if it's provisional

         22  employment. On the date that you enter service, that

         23  determines what tier you are in the retirement

         24  system.

         25                 So, right now there has not been
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          2  legislation brought forward or anything passed that

          3  will give a New York City employee prior tier

          4  service if they buy back the military time.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: For this

          6  Committee, that's one thing we can actually have a

          7  positive effect on for sure. Not one thing, that's

          8  something we can have a positive effect on.

          9                 Yes, to be able to, in other words,

         10  if you're in the military during the time when Tier

         11  1 basically ended for new membership, if members

         12  were, basically Vietnam veterans, could get a way to

         13  get into Tier 1, if they could no way have been in

         14  Tier 1 at that time if they served in the sixties

         15  into the early seventies. When did Tier 1 end, by

         16  the way?

         17                 MS. JOYNES: Don't quote me on this,

         18  because like I said, I wouldn't be sure, because

         19  you're talking to a Tier 4 City employee. I think

         20  Tier 1, oh goodness, you're talking about early

         21  eighties, late seventies.

         22                 But, again, you know, that's one of

         23  the things about having the buy-back pass. You know,

         24  unfortunately, it just works for retirement, doesn't

         25  give you prior tier service. So, I'm pretty sure
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          2  there's a lot of vets out there that would probably

          3  like to be able to have that happen.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure. Because

          5  a lot of them were derailed when they had to go into

          6  the military for one reason or another. That's one

          7  issue.

          8                 And the other one was, again, do you

          9  know how they came up with the 8,000 and more

         10  dollars?

         11                 MS. JOYNES: Right. From what I

         12  understand, it's based on the individual's salary.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Oh, it's based

         14  on the salary.

         15                 MS. JOYNES: Yes, it's based on the

         16  salary and your time in City government. They have a

         17  formula that NYCERS works through. It's not just

         18  $8,000 across the board for everybody.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure.

         20                 MS. JOYNES: It's on each individual.

         21  So that when your numbers, the NYCERS or the Fire

         22  Pension Fund or the Police Pension Fund, they run

         23  your numbers and tell you exactly how much it is for

         24  you to buy back. And I believe they give you the

         25  option to pay in installments and take it out of
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          2  your check.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Well, that's

          4  good to hear. I couldn't imagine some veterans being

          5  able to cough that up. I didn't know it was that

          6  type of a situation. I think it's a lot, too much

          7  anyway as it is.

          8                 But you answered that question very

          9  well, and I appreciate that.

         10                 MS. JOYNES: You're very welcome.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I have

         12  actually a question unrelated to today's hearing.

         13                 MS. JOYNES: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Maybe you can

         15  answer the following: Regarding veterans' credits

         16  that are given on the Civil Service exams here in

         17  the City. We have high points, like ten points,

         18  right?

         19                 MS. JOYNES: Right. Ten points if

         20  you're a disabled vet. Five points if -- and that

         21  five points is given to veterans who served during a

         22  war-time period, or if you served Beirut, Lebanon or

         23  Grenada, you have to have gotten an expeditionary

         24  medal in order to get that benefit.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right.
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          2                 MS. JOYNES: Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: So, my

          4  question to that is, do you know how many veterans

          5  have applied for that benefit?

          6                 MS. JOYNES: That I don't know. We

          7  would have to get that information from DCAS.

          8  Because it depends. I mean, they've had you're

          9  talking about thousands of exams given, if they have

         10  that number I will be able to have them give it to

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right. I'm

         13  sure they do because you have to check off the box.

         14                 MS. JOYNES: Right, exactly.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And one of

         16  the things this Committee is contemplating is

         17  actually raising the veterans' credits for Civil

         18  Service exams. Do you have a position on that?

         19                 MS. JOYNES: Well, again, right now I

         20  would have to defer with DCAS, because I know they

         21  have a formula on giving numbers.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right.

         23                 MS. JOYNES: Because like I said, a

         24  current vet, you know, you think about how it works,

         25  and if they pass the exam, you know, they could
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          2  still use their preference, but we try to tell

          3  veterans, you know, you only get one time to use it,

          4  so to save it -- let's say you're going to be in the

          5  Police Department, you're looking to work to

          6  retirement.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right.

          8                 MS. JOYNES: But you get a promotional

          9  exam. The promotional exams are usually harder than

         10  entrance exams, so, we encourage vets to save their

         11  preference points for when they take a promotional

         12  exam. So, that's when they're going to need it.

         13                 But you know, again, that's a

         14  question for DCAS, because I'm pretty sure they have

         15  a formula based on what the average person, you

         16  know, how they pass an exam and the numbers and

         17  everything, how that benefits. Because there again,

         18  you're talking about 100 people that make, you know,

         19  a 65 on the exam and ten --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I'm sorry to

         21  pepper you with these questions. You're really not

         22  prepared for them because that was not the purpose

         23  of the hearing. But we are talking about benefits.

         24                 MS. JOYNES: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Are the five

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2  points currently, are you allowed to split them, or

          3  they have to be used all at once, do you know?

          4                 MS. JOYNES: From what I understand,

          5  you can split them, and, again, DCAS, you know, will

          6  be able to give a better answer on that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

          8  very much.

          9                 Both of you, thank you for your

         10  testimony.

         11                 MS. JOYNES: You're very welcome.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay, we're

         13  going to call up next Mr. Edward Daniels and John

         14  Byrnes.

         15                 MR. BYRNES: My name is John Byrnes.

         16  I'm a New York City resident and a veteran of both

         17  the Marine Corps in the early nineties, and the Army

         18  National Guard, New York Army National Guard in Iraq

         19  recently.

         20                 I have to apologize, I didn't have

         21  any prepared statement today, so I'm going to go a

         22  little off the cuff here, which is probably better,

         23  because I didn't realize this was going to be about

         24  accessibility and I can speak to that, you just have

         25  to bear with me if I get a little off track here.
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          2                 Accessibility for veterans is an

          3  important issue right now. You know, in light of the

          4  fact that there are significant assets out there for

          5  veterans, there's two issues: First of all, the

          6  institutions and facilities that are available are

          7  not always the most inviting.

          8                 They're often distant from a

          9  veteran's home. In Brooklyn, you have a hospital all

         10  the way down in Bayridge, in Manhattan it's all the

         11  way over by the River, far from the subways. There

         12  are medal detectors in the hospitals which are

         13  discouraging, and there's a Byzantine bureaucracy

         14  that a veteran has to negotiate in order to get

         15  benefits whether it's medical or financial. And it's

         16  very discouraging and lots of veterans turn away

         17  from the process because they're discouraged.

         18                 I know that I've walked away from

         19  veterans' health care on several occasions because

         20  they do things like postpone your appointment until

         21  you give up.

         22                 In addition, in spite of decreased

         23  deployments and a huge increase in the number of

         24  combat veterans, institutions, the VA, New York

         25  State and MOVA have not really changed their

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON VETERANS

          2  structure or seriously increased their funding in

          3  the last five years since we began this war.

          4                 So, in spite of the fact that we have

          5  a huge influx of combat veterans, accessibility for

          6  them hasn't changed in terms of what's available for

          7  them to access.

          8                 Some of the things that were

          9  uncovered by the speakers today earlier that are

         10  important for accessibility I think are things like

         11  PTSD, hidden cases.

         12                 I returned from Iraq with a company

         13  of approximately 120, 125 infantry men. Since we've

         14  been back four have identified themselves, you know,

         15  to me personally, as suffering from PTSD or some

         16  kind of adjustment issues.

         17                 Few of those cases identified

         18  themselves to no one else, and are only receiving

         19  benefits and counseling through Veterans Affairs

         20  because I knew where to find them.

         21                 You know, there was no outreach to

         22  them whatsoever. The command wasn't of much help.

         23  And it's the kind of thing that the more soldiers

         24  and the more veterans that know and can help one

         25  another, the better off we are.
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          2                 But they wouldn't have received the

          3  counseling that they're receiving if there wasn't a

          4  buddy of theirs who knew where to send them. They

          5  weren't helped by the Mayor's Office, they weren't

          6  helped by the New York State, and they weren't

          7  helped by the federal government, the way things are

          8  arranged now.

          9                 Other issues that are really

         10  important for accessibility are disability and

         11  housing. I have invited a veteran named Harold

         12  Manwell (phonetic), who maybe some of you have heard

         13  of to testify today. He declined because he's very,

         14  very frustrated with testifying in public.

         15  Apparently he testified at one City Council hearing

         16  and one of the Council members was falling asleep.

         17                 But Harold is a veteran of Iraq as

         18  well, who came off active duty in the 82nd Airborne.

         19  Came to New York with a wife and child, and is

         20  basically living out of his car personally while

         21  shifting his wife and child from house to house,

         22  from relative to relative, before he was able to get

         23  100 percent disability from the VA. A process which

         24  took him almost a year. His housing was eventually

         25  provided by a foundation that was set up by a
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          2  private individual of some means who is now

          3  servicing veterans with housing issues. But the

          4  housing crisis for veterans remains.

          5                 Another serious problem with

          6  accessibility is education benefits. And I wish that

          7  the New York State representative had stayed for a

          8  couple of minutes, because I have a question for

          9  him; and that's, why, when we suddenly have a

         10  significant increase in combat veterans coming back,

         11  many of the young men who haven't completed their

         12  education, are setting a deadline of this September

         13  for the New York State Veterans, originally Vietnam

         14  Veterans, to issue an award of $1,000 a semester,

         15  it's going to disappear, while we still have New

         16  York State National Guards men and New York Reserve,

         17  as well as New York citizens who are on active duty

         18  in Afghanistan and Iraq, why is the State cancelling

         19  that program?

         20                 So that's another area where

         21  accessibility -- and that's a particular program

         22  that doesn't get much play. It's not advertised. You

         23  really have to look for it.

         24                 And there are a lot of little

         25  benefits programs that they play the funding game
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          2  on, the shell game, where they do what they can to

          3  discourage veterans to apply, by hiding the

          4  programs, not advertising them, not pushing them in

          5  public, and not allowing, or not making it easy for

          6  a veteran to find out about the program, and then

          7  setting artificial deadlines.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. I

          9  appreciate your testimony, I have to cut you off

         10  because I want to hear from Mr. Daniels, but I have

         11  a couple of questions for you.

         12                 What do you do now?

         13                 MR. BYRNES: I'm a writer.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: You're a

         15  writer.

         16                 MR. BYRNES: Right now I am working on

         17  the Veterans' webpage for the University of New

         18  York.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And you live

         20  in the five boroughs?

         21                 MR. BYRNES: I live in Queens.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: What part?

         23                 MR. BYRNES: I live in Forest Hills,

         24  Melinda Katz's district.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Are you
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          2  involved with any veterans' advocacy organizations?

          3                 MR. BYRNES: I work with the City

          4  University's Steering Committee, and that's pretty

          5  much it.

          6                 They have a Steering Committee on

          7  Veterans' issues. But I know many of the people at

          8  City University. I know Joe Bellow, through my

          9  service I happen to know Paul Wyckoff of IAVA. So,

         10  while I'm not a member of any particular veterans'

         11  organization, I am aware of what goes on, and I'm

         12  linked into these individuals.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Right.

         14                 I think that an organization that

         15  would have someone like you would be a plus. You

         16  might want to look into tying into one. Makes it

         17  probably a little easier to move forward, and we

         18  want to do a more coordinated effort. What this

         19  Committee has attempted to do for the last year is

         20  trying to strengthen advocacy for veterans, and

         21  clearly the system hasn't been providing services

         22  that they should, nor that they have committed to

         23  do. So, I think the main focus of this Committee is

         24  trying to help organize that, so that we can get

         25  those benefits.
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          2                 And obviously we're going to be

          3  asking the City of New York to make a monetary

          4  investment, and we'll see what the --

          5                 MR. BYRNES: Well, I think that's only

          6  fair, considering, you know, veterans and the

          7  National Guard responded to 9/11, they responded on

          8  the subways, we responded to the airports, and we

          9  responded to the trains on several occasions. And so

         10  every time the Mayor turns around and needs to solve

         11  a terrorism issue or make the public feel secure, he

         12  calls in the National Guard, and yet he seems very

         13  resistant to increase any kind of funding to us

         14  after the mission is over.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay. Thank

         16  you very much for your testimony.

         17                 Mr. Daniels.

         18                 MR. DANIELS: Thank you for having me

         19  here this afternoon.

         20                 Like with my colleague, I don't have

         21  a written testimony, so I'm going to do it from the

         22  heart.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.

         24                 MR. DANIELS: My name is Edward M.

         25  Daniels, and I work with an organization called
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          2  Incarcerated Veterans Consortium, Incorporated.

          3                 In regards to this hearing on

          4  accessibility of services for veterans, the two

          5  prior speakers prior to speaking now, elucidated on

          6  the functions and the wherewithal of their specific

          7  offices. But when you talk about accessibility of

          8  services, and not doing any disservice or disrespect

          9  to my colleagues that I've known for a long time,

         10  they didn't broach the problem of how do veterans

         11  access services when they're coming home or they're

         12  in the community and they need help, i.e. for

         13  educational concerns, housing concerns, legal

         14  problems that arise, child support issues, and

         15  things of that nature, now do access my benefits,

         16  who do I look forward to to help me get my benefits,

         17  and do I get qualified help? Those issues weren't

         18  broached.

         19                 When you talk about obtaining

         20  accessibility to services, you have to bring someone

         21  out there in the community where they're

         22  participating in street fairs, where they're part of

         23  a community board, whether you get involved with the

         24  local clergy, churches, synagogues, mosques,

         25  whatever the situation may be, and you have to be an
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          2  open-door policy to render these services to these

          3  veterans because a lot of times they come in and

          4  they're totally befuddled. Whether there is given

          5  directive for medical services, whether it's simply

          6  getting their DD214 for getting a job.

          7                 Let me give you a short example. I

          8  had a veteran come here one day that was on public

          9  assistance, and what he wanted was simply to get a

         10  disposition on legal matters so that he can get a

         11  job in the Parks Department.

         12                 I spent over an hour with the

         13  gentleman assisting him, trying to locate the,

         14  believe it or not, the phone number for the court

         15  system. I went to 3-1-1. I was unable to get it. I

         16  was able to get the phone number to the

         17  Comptroller's Office whereby I got the phone number

         18  to get the court system, the Chief Clerk or the

         19  Supreme Court. I got his number, I called, and low

         20  and behold we found that because he was on public

         21  assistance, that he could get his disposition of his

         22  cases for free without having to make any payment.

         23                 Suffice to say, the gentleman went

         24  down, he got his disposition, and several weeks

         25  later, he came by, he thanked me and I had forgotten
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          2  about who he was. He says I'm the guy that you

          3  helped get a disposition. He says now I have a job

          4  at the Parks Department.

          5                 Those are the things that help a vet.

          6                 When you're talking about affordable

          7  housing, last night I was at the Borden Avenue

          8  Veterans' Residence in your district, Chairman, and

          9  I'm a member of the Advisory Board there for the

         10  last, since the inception of that facility, and one

         11  of the main problems being that, one, you have quite

         12  a few gentlemen there that are looking to start

         13  their life, and some I have seen that I have known

         14  before and they're there, and sometimes what they're

         15  looking for is just a start, how to get affordable

         16  housing. Once I have a job and try to get my life

         17  straight, how do I go get affordable housing?

         18                 And, so, when you're a organization,

         19  like a CBVO, a Community-Based Veterans'

         20  Organization, by being out there in the community

         21  for such a long period of time, you develop a

         22  rapport with the main line organizations within the

         23  community, and you refer.

         24                 Like through the efforts of our

         25  organization, I developed a relationship with this
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          2  gentleman, who also works, has a position where they

          3  have apartments available, one bedrooms and studios,

          4  and the income is 24,800 to 29,650 a year. That's

          5  affordable housing. But it's not affordable housing

          6  when you've got people constantly coming in looking

          7  for those types of things, and you can refer, you

          8  can say, well, this is what I do, I call up the

          9  person, say, tell them that you're a friend of Ed

         10  Daniels who is a friend of such and such, and

         11  they'll fax, they'll send you an application.

         12                 I think the last time when I was here

         13  when I was talking about a young lady who had

         14  reached out to our office for help concerning a

         15  problem with DNA testing and child support, she was

         16  making far less than 24,000 so I was able to refer

         17  her, in fact the people told her come over and pick

         18  up the application.

         19                 So, I'm hopeful and optimistic,

         20  she'll get in. She's also now going to school, doing

         21  her part-time, because she works four days a week

         22  now.

         23                 And, so, when you talk about

         24  accessibility, we're talking about organizations

         25  that have a long-standing commitment to the
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          2  community in their respective boroughs. Whether it's

          3  Black Veterans of Social Justice in Brooklyn,

          4  whether it's the El Barrio Post, or the New Era

          5  Veterans in the Bronx, Incarcerated Veterans here in

          6  Manhattan, the Staten Island Support Our Soldiers,

          7  those are the type of organizations we talk about

          8  that are entrenched within the community. And been

          9  there for such a long time as elsewhere where they

         10  have fortified a commitment and relationship with

         11  the people of those boroughs.

         12                 And when they talk about

         13  accessibility, you're talking about organizations

         14  like the CBOs where they have had the greatest

         15  opportunity to be successful. We talk about you want

         16  to create entities in those boroughs.

         17                 These are the type of organizations

         18  we want to see that the things are geared to to help

         19  them develop more, a better range of commitment to

         20  their resident veterans, and they are better

         21  recognized and they're widely respected. The CBOs

         22  have successfully worked with a plethora of agencies

         23  and have an enormous credibility established as a

         24  result of their long-standing working relationship

         25  and have each other's trust. And I mean working with
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          2  the community organizations, whether it's the

          3  community boards, whether it's the churches, et

          4  cetera, these are the type of things we're talking

          5  about when you talk about accessibility. These are

          6  the organizations that have been there for years,

          7  and they are deeply entrenched in their communities.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Mr. Daniels

         10  and Mr. Byrnes, thank you very much for your

         11  testimony. And we're keeping you posted for the next

         12  hearings, in the initiative battle that we are

         13  undertaking.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 MR. DANIELS: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: At this point

         17  we're going to close the hearing on the Veterans.

         18  Have a good afternoon.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 2:20 p.m.)
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